FURTHER INFORMATION

Any questions concerning the new rule and implementation can be directed to David
-Abdalla of ORE’s Special Litigation and Projects Division at (202) 564—2413 or by email at
abdalla. dawd@epa gov. ,

LIST OF EXISTING EPA CIVIL PENALTY POLICIES MODIFIED BY THIS
MEMORANDUM

General

Policy on Civil Penalties (2/14/84)
A Framework for Statute-Specific Approaches to Penalty Assessments (2/14/84)
Guidance on Use of Penalty Policies in Administrative Litigation (12/15/95)

Clean Air Act - Stationary Sources

Clean Air Act Stationary Source Civil Penalty Policy (7/23/95) (This is a generic policy
for stationary sources).

Clarifications to the October 25, 191 Clean Air Act Statlonary Source Civil Penalty
Policy (1/17/92)

Combined Enforcement Policy for Section 1 12(r)Rlsk of the Clean Air Act [Risk
Management Plan] (8/15/01)

There are a series of appendices that address certain specific subprograms within the stationary
source program. '
Appendix I - Permit Requirements for the Construction or Modification of Major
Stationary Sources of Air Pollution (Not Dated)
Clarification of the Use of Appendix I of the Clean Air Act Statlonary Source Civil
Penalty Policy (7/ 13/95)
Appendix II - Vinyl Chloride Civil Penalty Policy (Not Dated)
Appendix III - Asbestos Demolition and Renovatlon C1v11 Penalty Policy (Revised
5/5/92)
Appendix IV - Volatile Organic Compounds Where Reformulation of Low Solvent
Technology is the Applicable Method of Compliance (Not Dated)
Appendix V - Air Civil Penalty Worksheet
Appendix VI - Volatile Hazardous Air Pollutant Civil Penalty Policy (Revised 3/2/88)
Appendix VII - Residential Wood Heaters (Not Dated)
Appendix VIII - Manufacture or Import of Controlled Substances in Amounts
Exceeding Allowances Properly Held Under Protection of Stratospheric Ozone
(11/24/89)
Appendix X - Clean Air Act Civil Penalty Pohcy Applicable to Persons Who Perform
Service for Consideration on a Motor Vehicle Air Conditioner Involving the Refrigerant



or Who Sell Small Containers of Refrigerant in Violation of 40 C.F.R. Part 82, Protection
of Stratospheric Ozone, Subpart B (Not Dated)

Appendix X - Clean Air Act Civil Penalty Policy for Violations of 40 C.F.R. Part 82,
Subpart F: Maintenance, Service, Repair, and Disposal of Appliances Containing
Refrigerant (6/1/94)

Appendix XI - Clean Air Act Civil Penalty Policy for Violations of 40 C.F.R. Part 82,
Subpart C: Ban on Nonessential Products Containing Class I Substances and Ban on’
Nonessential Products Containing or Manufactured with Class II Substances (Not Dated)

Clean Air Act - Mobile Sources

Volatility Civil Penalty Policy (12/1/89)
Civil Penalty Policy for Administrative Hearings (1/14/93)
Manufacturers Programs Branch Interim Penalty Policy (3/31/93)
Interim Diesel Civil Penalty Policy (2/8/94)
~ Tampering and Defeat Device Civil Penalty Policy for Notices of Violation (2/28/94)
Draft Reformulated Gasoline and Anti-Dumping Settlement Policy (6/3/96)

TSCA

Guidelines for the Assessment of Civil Penalties Under Section 16 of TSCA (7/7/80)
(Published in Federal Register on 9/10/80. Note that the first PCB penalty policy was
published along with it, but the PCB policy is now obsolete). This is a generic policy for
TSCA sources. There are a series of policies that address certain specific subprograms
within TSCA. They are as follows:

Record keeping and Reporting Rules TSCA Sections 8, 12, and 13 (3/31/99)
PCB Penalty Policy (4/9/90)
- TSCA Section 5 Enforcement Response Policy (6/8/89), amended (7/1/93)
TSCA Good Laboratory Practices Regulations Enforcement Policy (4/9/85)
TSCA Section 4 Test Rules (5/28/86) ,
TSCA Title II - Asbestos Hazard Emergency Response Act (AHERA)
Interim Final ERP for the Asbestos Hazard Emergency Response Act (1/31/89)
ERP for Asbestos Abatement Projects; Worker Protection Rule (11/14/89)
Section 1018 of the Residential Lead-Based Paint Hazard Reduction Act - Disclosure
Rule Enforcement Response Policy (2/2000)

~ Safe Drinking Water Act - UIC

Interim Final UIC Program Judicial and Administrative Order Settlement Penalty Policy
-~ Underground Injection Control Guidance No. 79 (9/27/93)

Safe Drinking Water Act - PWS



New Public Water System Supervision Program Settlement Penalty Policy (5/25/94)
EPCRA |

Enforcement Response Policy for Sections 304, 311, and 312 of the Emergency Planning
and Community Right to Know Act/Enforcement Response Policy for Section 103 of the -
Comprehensive Enforcement Response, Compensation, and Liability Act (9/30/99)

Enforcement Response Policy for Section 313 of the Emergency Planning and ‘
Community Right-to-Know Act (1986) and Section 6607 of the Pollutlon Prevention Act
(1990) (Amended)(4/12/01)

Clean Water Act

Revised Interim Clean Water Act Settlement Penalty Policy (3/1/95) (3/3/98)

Clean Water Act Section 404 Civil Administrative Penalty Actions Guidance on
Calculating Settlement Amounts (12/21/01)

Civil Penalty Policy for Section 311(b)(3) and Section 311 (j) of the Clean Water Act
(8/98)

Pilot Enforcement Approach for MOM [Management, Operation and Mamtenance] Cases
in Region I'V (1/23/03) :

RCRA

RCRA Civil Penalty Policy (6/23/03)
Guidance on the Use of Section 7003 of RCRA (10/97)

UST
U.S. EPA Penalty Guidance for Violations of UST Regulations (November 1990)
Guidance for Federal Field Citation Enforcement (OSWER Directive- No. 9610-16)
. (October 1993)
CERCLA

Interim Policy on Settlement of CERCLA Section 106 (b)(1) and Section 107 (c)(3)
Punitive Damage Claims for Noncompliance with Administrative Orders (9/30/97)



FIFRA

General FIFRA Enforcement Response Policy (7/2/90)

FIFRA Section 7(c) ERP (2/10/86) '

Enforcement Response Policy for the Federal Insecticide, Fungicide and Rodenticide Act:
Good Laboratory Practice (GLP) Regulations (9/30/91)

FIFRA Worker Protection Standard Penalty Policy, Interim Final (9/97)

Attachment

CC.

(w/attachment)
Regional Counsel, Regions I - X
Director, Office of Environmental Stewardship, Region I
Director, Division of Enforcement and Compliance Assurance, Region II
Director, Office of Enforcement, Compliance, and Environmental Justice, Region ITT
Director, Office of Enforcement and Compliance Assurance, Region V
Director, Compliance Assurance and Enforcement Division, Region VI
Director, Office of Enforcement, Compliance and Environmental Justice, Region VIII
Director, Office of Civil Rights, Enforcement and Environmental Justice, Region X
Regional Media Division Directors :
Regional Enforcement Coordinators, Regions I - X
Dana Ott, OGC-CCID
OECA Office Directors -
ORE Division Directors
OSRE Division Directors
Bruce Gelber, Chief, EES, DOJ
Deputy and Assistant Chiefs, EES, DOJ
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April 11,2007

RCRA Compliance Evaluation Inspections (CEI)

Niagara Ceramics Corp. (formerly Buffalo China) - EPA ID Number NYD 980 653 109
75 Hayes Place
Buffalo, NY 14210

http://www.niagaraceramics.com/

Inspector: Ronald Voelkel (DECA-RCB), voelkel.ronald@epa.gov

A RCRA compliance evaluation inspection (CEI) was conducted on April 4, 2007 of Niagara
Ceramics Corp. in Buffalo, NY. Representing the facility was Mr. Karl H. Franz, V.P.
Engineering (716 821-5600 Ext. 205). The RCRA CEI consisted of an opening interview, a site
tour, a review of facility documents, and a closing interview.

The CEI was conducted as part of the Priority Chemical pilot program.

A pre-inspection review of the RCRAInfo database indicated that the facility last underwent a
RCRA CEI on August 14, 2003 by the NYSDEC; no violations were denoted as a result of that
inspection. A review of the NYSDEC for the period March 2004 through March 2007 showed
that the facility manifested about 45,000 lbs of “D006" (for the toxic characteristics of Cadmium)
hazardous waste every two to four months; the facility also regularly manifested D001 (ignitable)
hazardous waste. The database also indicated that the facility did not manifest any hazardous
waste at least for the period August 2006 to March 2007. In addition, during the CEI, the facility
representative stated that the D006 waste should have been manifested as D008 hazardous waste

since the primary toxic component of this waste is lead.
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FACILITY OPERATIONS

Niagara Ceramics manufactures commercial ceramic dinnerware products using various plastic
forming, dry pressing, slip casting, glazing, and decorating operations. The facility was
established at this site in 1902 as Buffalo China and was purchased as a management buyout
from Oneida Ltd. in March 2004. The site encompasses one large building 360,000 square-foot
in area (see attached facility schematic). The facility presently employs about 200 people and
operates on two 12-hour shifts, seven days per week. According to facility representatives, there
are no underground storage tanks on site; however, it was stated that there are various concrete
“pits” which collect wastewater from floor trenches throughout the facility as part of their
wastewater treatment system (see below). The facility also manages three “bisque” (mould)
furnaces, two glazing kilns, and three decorating furnaces which are gas and electrically operated.

Niagara Ceramics’ operations includes the following: (1) Plastic Forming, whereby clay is
shaped by molding and are filter-pressed before being fired in a kiln or furnace; (2) Slip Casting
which involves a slﬁrry being poured into a porous mold made of Plaster 6f Paris; the liquid is
filtered out through the mould leaving a solid porcelain bo'dy; the facility fabricates its own
“moulds” for its forming, casting and pressing operations (3) Dry Pressing (dry forming) which is
used to shape less plastic bodies; the body is forced through a steel die to produce a column of
uniform girth which is either cut into the desired length or used as a blank for other forming

operations..

These operations include the crushing, mixing, and physical and magnetic filtering and sieving
(to remove impurities and for consistent particle sizing) of raw materials to generated slurries
(clay liquid), filter-pressed clay slurries to produce clay “cakes”, and “flash dried” slurries to
produce raw material powders that have a low “angle of repose” that would allow this powder to
flow through pipes. Raw materials used by Niagara Ceramics in the manufacturing of ceramic
products includes: Kaolin (three dedicated silos), Ball Clay, Flint, Alumina, and Naphthalene
Cyanide. These materials are received in bulk by tanker truck and, primarily, by rail car. Other
raw materials, including powders containing hazardous constituents (e.g. lead) used in glazing
operations, are received in 25 kg bags. Glazing, decorating, and firing operations vary according
the type of body forming method used and the type of ware being produced.



Niagara Ceramics also conducts printing operations to imprint and decorate dinnerware. This
operation includes silk screening and decal printing; these operations generate spent solvent

wastes.

In addition, the facility manages a wastewater collection system which processes wastewater
originating from multiple sources throughout the facility, including from floor drains. Some
wastewater is deposited directly into the Buffalo Sewer Authority municipal sewer system; other
wastewater is directed to a “clarifier” wastewater treatment syétem whereby water undergoes
flocculation (clumping) and settling in a settling tank; water which does not settle is either re-
used or is directed to the municipal sewer system; the settled (bottom) solid waste is directed to a
filter press. According to facility representatives, the facility samples wastewater destined for the
municipal sewer system twice per year; the Buffalo Sewer Authority conducts sampling once per
year. Copies of documents from the Buffalo Sewer Authority were reviewed during the

inspection (see Record Keeping section).

HAZARDOUS AND SOLID WASTE GENERATION

The primary hazardous waste generated by Niagara Ceramics is filtercakes which have the toxic
characteristic for lead (D008); this waste is generated by a filter press which processes “clay
water” wastewater from glazing operations. Wastewater from the filterpress is directed to a
“clarifier” waste water treatment system; water from this sysfem is deposited in the municipal
waste water treatment system under a permit from the Buffalo Sewer Authority. Cadmium is also
a constituent of some glazevpowders, and all manifest reviewed denoted the manifested
hazardous waste as D006. During calendar year 2005, the facility manifested an monthly average
of 24,525 Ibs of this hazardous waste on a regular basis. However, during 2006, only two _
shipments, totaling 88,700 lbs of this waste, were manifested on April 12, 2006 and August 18,
2006 (an average of 5,530 lbs per month); it was determined during the inspection that no

shipments were made subsequent to August 18, 2006.

In addition to D008 hazardous waste, the facility generates waste solvents from ceramic
decoration operations; these operations include offset printing, silk screening, and decalling.
Spent solvent is primarily generated from the use of parts washers to clean mixing bowls and

other decoration equipment. At the time of the inspection, several cans of solvent-soaked soiled



rags were observed; these were stated to be send to a service for cleaning, The solvent stated to
be used is “Solvent 100"; the MSDS for this solvent indicates a flash point of 113°F (a copy of
the MSDS is attached). However, one drum of spent solvent was labeled “Toluene, Xylene,
D008", while Solvent 100 does not include lead or Toluene as a constituent. This waste is

manifested as D001 hazardous waste.

It was stated that waste paints and waste inks generated in the decoration area are deposited in
the waste solvent container. No longer used silk screens are “scraped” and discarded as regular
trash. No photo-chemical wastes were observed to be generated as part of the ceramic decoration

operations.

The following three waste materials were given a Beneficial Use Determinations (BUD) by the
New York State Department of Conservation: (1) Bisque by -product (non-glazed clay ceramics);
(2) Plaster of Paris by-product; (3) Bisque/Glost by-product; and (4) Refractory by-product.
BUDs are determinations by the NYSDEC that waste material can serve a use, without
modification, that serves a useful purpose; their determinations are based on data submitted by
the facility. '

Spent fluorescent tubes were stated to be shipped to a recycler; certificates of recycling and

disposal were submitted subsequent to the CEIL

SITE TOUR

The following areas were observed during the site tour; the descriptions given below may
facilitate an understanding of facility operations; however, given the large number of areas and

operations, descriptions of processes may contain some errors:

1. Receiving Area: loading dock where bulk raw material is received by rail or by truck; raw
material in the form of dry particles are conveyed from the loading area to seven (7) 130 to 300
ton tanks (each tank is about 100 feet in height) using dedicated pipes for Kaolin (three pipes),
Ball Clay, Flint, Alumina, and Naphthalene Cyanide raw material. At the time of the CEI, a rail
tanker was in the loading area; it was observed that the floor of this entire area was covered with

about a one-inch deep layer of a yellow raw material which was identified by the facility



representative as Kaolin (see photograph).

2. Tank Room: location at the base of the seven large tanks where some raw materials are placed
in load cells, moistened with water, and transferred to blenders which uses a “blunger” (paddle)

to create clay slurries;

3. Spray Dry Area: location where some liquid clay slurries are “flash dried” for use in dry
forming; this process gives the clay powders a low “angle of repose” and allows it to flow

through pipes as a dry raw material media;.

4. Screening Processing Area: location where clay slurries are filtered to remove impurities; the

process includes electromagnetic filtering;

5. Holding Area: location of three flocculation/settling tanks for wastewater originating from
non-glaze operations; effluent is deposited into the municipal sewer system; settling bottoms

(solids) are directed to a filter press.

6. Filter Press Area: location where claywater (slurry) is Squeezed to reduce its water content
(from about 30 percent to about 20 percent) to create a clay “cake” used in making some ceramic

products; it was stated that about 13 tons of claywater is processed every two days..

7. Forming Process Area; location of cup forming machines whereby moulds of handle-less cups
are filled and placed in ovens; manual finishing (using a buffer) and the attachment of handles is
followed by placing the cups into a kiln; “ram pressing” is also conducted by the facility and

involves more intricate flatware shapes.
8. Dry Press Area: manufacturing area;
9. Kiln: formed/pressed bodies are placed in this kiln via rail; the kiln is heated to 2,300° F;

10. Polishing Area: location of a large vibrating finisher machine which polishes formed/pressed
bodies using shale stones as the polishing media; this is also the area where defective bodies are
removed for disposal; waste discarded bodies was given a Beneficial Use designation by the
NYSDEC; broken ceramics are shipped off-site for use as aggregate for road bed and other types

of construction sites.



11. Stamping Area: manual hand-stamping of Niagara Ceramic trademark of bottom of bodies is

conducted here..

12. “Old Slip House”; location where plates are manufactured using the Slip Forming process;
the clay slurry used is mixed at the other end of the facility (near the Tank Room); wastewater

generated here is pumped back to two holding tank (Holding Area) where the effluent is either
reused as virgin water or is directed to the clarifier wastewater treatment system.

13. Receiving Area: for Plaster of Paris

14. Round Plate Making Area: location of five round plate “jiggering” machines; each machine
is dedicated-to a different size plate; from here, plate bodies go through drying and finishing

processes prior to being fired in a kiln.

15. Mould Making Area: location where Plaster of Paris “moulds” are manufactured using metal
molds (“working case”); includes a small mixer; moulds require two to three weeks to cure; each

mould can be used for about 100 impressions.
16. Mould Storage Area:

17. Hazardous Waste Storage Area: one of the hazardous waste storage areas for the facility; at
the time of the inspection, nine (9) drums of “oil rags” and “non-hazardous” waste oil, and one
(1) drum of D001 hazardous waste, were being stored; the hazardous waste drum was dated July

25, 2006.

18. Outdoors: location of separate, dedicated bins for the storage of various BUD waste
materials, including “Glostware” and “Cordenite”, “Moulds”, and “Silicon Carbide” (see

photographs).

19. Decoration Department: these include (a) location where color polymers are manually
applied to pieces for “underglaze” decoration prior to undergoing glazing operations; a machine
to apply decorations was located here but was not in use at the time of the inspection; (b)
decalling area; (c) off-set printing decoration area; involves use of an off-set silk screening
machine; (d) parts washer; this is the primary source of the spent solvent hazardous waste

generated by the facility; adjacent to this was a cabinet containing a 55-gallon drum of spent
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solvent wastes and a container of fresh solvent (“Solvent 100"); the hazardous waste container in
this satellite accumulation area was open and not labeled as hazardous waste.

20. Color Lab: location where colors are mixed; one drum of spent solvent hazardous waste was
located in a cabinet next to a parts washer (used to clean paint mixing bowls); the drum was
“marked with an accumulation start date of July 20, 2006, and was labeled as hazardous waste (a
label indicated the contents as “Toluene, Xylene, D008"); the drum had a funnel and was open;
also located in this area was a red container for rags soiled with waste paint and spent solvent;
the container was not labeled or marked; when asked how these rags are disposed of] the facility

representative stated that they are sent to “a service” for cleaning.

21. Silk Screen Making Area: a photo-sensitive emulsion are coated onto blank silk screens; a
stencil is placed over the emulsion and “flashed” with light to imprint the stencil image onto the

silk screen; the silk screen is then pressure washer; the rinseate is placed into the sewer;

22, Decal Printing Area (“Press Room™): climate-controlled room; the location of a printing press
to produce decals; two soiled rag containers were located here; neither was labeled as hazardous
waste; the solvent used is “Solvent 100" (flashpoint of 113° F); waste paint was stated to be
placed into it’s original container; this is also the location for decal storage;

23. Glazing Area: two machines used to heat (a third machine is located in another area of the
facility) and spray glaze ceramic bodies; wastewater undergoes scrubbing and is deposited into
the wastewater treatment system directed at the filterpress that generates hazardous waste filter
cakes; as noted above, the facility operates two “well” systems to direct waste water; one system
originates from forming areas; the other directs wastewater generated from glazing areas; glaze is

composed of ground-up glaze powder (containing lead), water, and clay.

24. Glaze Storage Area: located of large bags of glaze powder raw material; the label included

the imdge of a skull and crossbones.

25. Glaze Room (clear glaze): location where glaze powder is mixed with ground minerals
(“frit”) in water, binder is added and placed into tanks; the mixture undergoes magnetic filtering,
placed into another tank from where glaze material is pumped to the glazing machines in the

Glazing Area.



26. Filterpress Area: location of two filter presses (one was not in operation at the time of the
CEI) which filter-press clay/water waste from the glazing machines; water from this process is

piped to the water clarifier; cake is deposited into a tan 777

27. Main Hazardous Waste Storage Area: location of the lead-contaminated filtercakes are
stored in large boxes (see photographs); at the time of the inspection, about sixteen (16) closed
boxes of filter cakes were being stored in this area; two additional boxes (one located next to the
filterpress) were open and waste was not being added or removed; these boxes were preprinted as
“HazPack”; however, none of the containers were labeled with the words “hazardous waste” or
with accumulation start dates; in addition, the boxes were placed so that there was no isle space
between rows of boxes and the boxes were located in a corner area which made the boxes

~ inaccessible to personnel or emergency equipment from any side; it was stated that the last
manifesting of this waste occurred in August 2006.

- 28. Tool Storage Area:

29. Corridor/Hallway: location used to store spent fluorescent lamps; at the time of the
inspection 15 boxes (approximately 500 spent lamp tubes) were being stored in this area; five of
these boxes were open; none were labeled as hazardous waste or as Universal Waste; the boxes
used for storage were the original boxes new bulbs (“GE Lighting BG836DC3CSA™) were
shipped in and indicated that the “Lamps contain mercury”. In addition to these 15 boxes, a trash
can was used to hold approximately 60 waste fluorescent lamps (see photograph).

RCRA RECORDS REVIEW

The following records were requested:

1. Manifests and LDR Notification Forms: all manifests for the shipment of filtercake
wastes, which are TC for lead (D008), were denoted on manifests as D006 (cadmium);
the last off-site shipment of hazardous waste was for 44,411 lbs of “D006" (manifest no.
NYD982792814 shipped to CWM Chemical Services, Inc ) which occurred on August
16, 2006, i.e. about 240 days prior to the CEI; the last shipment of waste solvents
occurred on December 12, 2005 (manifest no. NYG4437036) for 900 Ibs (2 drums) of
D001 hazardous waste. '



Beneficial Use Determinations (BUD) from the NYSDEC: as noted aboife, four waste
materials ( Bisque by -product (non-glazed clay ceramics), Plaster of Paris by-product,
Bisug/Glost by-product, and Refractory by-product are shipped off site for beneficial use,
primarily as road construction material; copies of BUD documents were reviewed.

Contingency Plan: was not available for review; the facility representative stated that he
“may not be able to find it”; correspondence indicating that copies of the Contingency
Plan were submitted to emergency responders were also not available for review.

Personnel Training: the facility conducted classroom Hazard Communication Training
and Lead Awareness Training for its employees on March, 2006 (see attached
memorandum dated April 21, 2006); no personnel or training records regarding

hazardous waste management were available for review at the time of the inspection.
Preparedness and Prevention: copies of correspondence addressed to emergency
response personnel were not available for review; there were no postings of emergency
responders or equipment near the communications device (telephone) closest to the

hazardous waste storage and generation areas.

NYSDEC Annual Report: dated February 22, 2006; indicates that the facility generates
D001, D006, D007 (Chromium), and D008 hazardous wastes in LQG quantities;

Sewer Permit (Buffalo Sewer Authority): expires May 2007; monitoring reports: last
report was dated December 27, 2006

Weekly Inspections: were stated not to be conducted; no logs are kept;

Air Permits: the facility has 15 emission points; the permits are dated September 13, 2005

CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

Niagara Ceramics manufactures commercial ceramic dinnerware products using various plastic

forming, dry pressing, slip casting, glazing, and decorating operations, and generates Large
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Quantity Generator quantities of primarily TC lead (D008) hazardous waste, waste solvents, and

spent fluorescent tubes; four waste materials were given Beneficial Use Determinations.
At the time of the inspection, the following violations were observed:

1. Failure to ship hazardous waste off-site to an authorized treatment, storage or disposal
facility in 90 days or less in violation of 6 NYCRR § 372(a)(8)(ii).

2. Failure to prepare hazardous waste manifests in accordance with instructions included in
Appendix 30 of 6 NYCRR § 372.2(b)(1) by not listing the appropriate waste type.

These violations refer to the approximately 240 days prior to the inspection when hazardous
waste was last shipped off-site, and to the mis-designation of the D008 hazardous waste as D006.

3. Failure to mark containers holding hazardous waste with the words “Hazardous Waste”
and with other words identifying their contents, in violation of 6 NYCRR § 373-2.9(d)(3).

4. Failure to clearly mark on each container the date upon which each period of
accumulation began, in violation of 6 NYCRR § 372.2(a)(8)(iii)(d), § 373-

LI e)(2)-

5. Failure to keep containers holding hazardous waste closed except when necessary to add
or remove waste, in violation of 6 NYCRR §372.2 (a)(8)(iii) and 6 NYCRR §373-3.9
(d)(1).

6. Failure to maintain aisle space between rows of hazardous waste containers to allow the

unobstructed movement of personnel, fire protection equipment, spill control equipment,
and decontamination equipment to any area of facility operation in an emergency, in
violation of 6 NYCRR § 373-3.3(e).

7. Failure to inspect, at least weekly, areas where containers are stored, looking for leaking
containers and for deterioration of containers and the containment system caused by
corrosion and other factors, in violation of 6 NYCRR § 373-3.9(e).

8. Failure to post the names and telephone numbers of the emergency coordinators next to
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the telephone in violation of 6 NYCRR § 372.2(a)(8)(iii)(e)(2)(D.

9. Failure to post the location of fire extinguishers and spill control material and, if present,
fire alarm, next to the telephone in violation of 6 NYCRR § 372.2(a)(8)(ii1)(e)(2)(ii).

These violations refer to the approximate 19 boxes (about 40,000 Ibs) of D008 hazardous waste
that were being stored; none of these containers were labeled as hazardous waste or with
accumulation start dates; two were open; and no isle space was available to inspect these large
containers. A 55-gallon drum of waste solvents was also not labeled as hazardous waste or with
an accumulation start date; this container was also open.. These violations also apply to
approximately 16 containers of spent fluorescent lamps (a total of about 900 spent lamps) which
were being stored without being labeled as hazardous or universal waste; at least six of these

containers were open.

In addition to these violatioﬁs, the facility could not produce a copy of its Contingency Plan or
copies of correspondence indicating that copies of the Contingency Plan were submitted to local
police departments, fire department, hospitals, and State and local emergency response teams in
violation of 6 NYCRR § 373-3.4(b)(1) and 6 NYCRR § 373-3.4(d)(2), respectively. The facility
was also not able to produce documents that show that it maintains records denoting job titles
and job descriptions for each position at the facility related to hazardous waste management, in
violation of 6 NYCRR § 373-3.2(g).

It is recommended that Niagara Ceramics be issued a Notice of Violation and § 3007 Information
Request Letter citing the manifest and storage violations, and to obtain information regarding
their Contingency Plan and personnel training records. In addition, the letter should inquire on
the significant decrease in the quantity of hazardous waste manifested during calendar year 2005
to the period subsequent to that time period, including the approximately 19 boxes (40,000 lbs)
of TC lead filter cakes observed during the CEI and which represents about eight months of
accumulated hazardous waste. Their response will indicate if any additional enforcement action

- should be taken.
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CERTIFIED MAIL -

RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED
Article # 7003 2260 0000 3244 2335

Karl H. Franz : RCB 1.D. # 07-3007-0000-47
V.P. Engineering - .
Niagara Ceramics Corp.

75 Hayes Place

Buffalo, NY 14210

Re: NOTICE OF VIOLATION
RCRA § 3007 Information Request
Niagara Ceramics Corp. - EPA ID Number NYD 980 653 109

Dear Mr. Franz:

The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) is charged with the protection of human
health and the environment under the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA), 42
U.S.C. §§ 6901 et seq.

Pursuant to RCRA, as amended by the Hazardous and Solid Waste Amendments of 1984
(HSWA), the EPA promulgated rules, regulations, and standards governing the handling and
management of hazardous waste as set forth in 40 C.F.R. Parts 260-272. For the purposes of this
Information Request and Notice of Violation, the hazardous waste regulations governing the
generation of hazardous waste were promulgated in 1980 and amended by HSWA in 1984.

The State of New York is authorized by the EPA to conduct a hazardous waste program under
Section 3006 of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6926 and is authorized to enforce RCRA. The EPA has
retained its authority to enforce the hazardous waste rules and regulations in the State of New
York.

The Notice of Violation (NOV) portion of this letter (see Attachment I) is issued pursuant to
Section 3008 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act, as amended by RCRA and HSWA, 42 U.S.C. §§
6901, 6928. Issuance of this NOV and compliance with its terms does not preclude EPA from
taking formal enforcement action against you and/or your company, including a monetary
penalty, under § 3008 of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6928, or any other applicable regulation or statute.

Internet Address 11JRL) o http./“aww epa.jov
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Pursuant to the provisions of Section 3007 of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6927, EPA may require parties
who handle or have handled hazardous waste to provide information relating to such wastes.
Pursuant to the statutory provisions cited above, EPA hereby requires that you provide the
information requested in Attachment II, using the instructions and definitions included in
Attachment [II. This information is necessary to determine the compliance status of the Niagara
Ceramics Corp.

Please provide the information requested no later than thirty (30) calendar days from receipt of
this letter. Requests for additional time must be justified. Requests for additional time must be
made within ten (10) calendar days of receipt of this letter. The response must be signed by a
responsible official or agent of your company, using the form in Attachment IV to this letter.

The response to the request in the attachment must be mailed to the following address:

Mr. Ronald Voelkel

Environmental Scientist

RCRA Compliance Branch

Division of Enforcement and Compliance Assistance
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency- Region 2
290 Broadway, 22nd Floor

New York, NY 10007-1866

You may, if you so desire, assert a business confidentiality claim covering all or part of the
information herein requested. The claim may be asserted by placing on (or attaching to) the
information at the time it is submitted, a cover sheet, stamped or typed with the legend, or other
suitable form of notice, such as "trade secret," "proprietary,” or "company confidential". The
claim should set forth the information requested in 40 Code of Federal Regulations (40 C.F.R.)
Section 2.204(e)(4). Information covered by such a claim will be disclosed by EPA only to the
extent permitted by, and by means of procedures set forth in, 40 C.F.R. Part 2. EPA will review
the information to determine the extent of confidentiality of the information, and may, at its
discretion, challenge the confidentiality claim pursuant to the procedures set forth at 40 C.F.R.
Part 2. If no such claim accompanies the information when it is received by EPA, it may be
made available to the public by EPA without further notice to you.

This information request is not subject to the requirements of the Paperwork Reduction Act
(PRA), as amended, 44 U.S.C. Part 3501 et seq.

Failure to respond in full to this requirement is a violation of RCRA and will result in federal
enforcement action pursuant to Section 3008 of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6928, including the
assessment of a monetary penalty. Such penalties may be up to $ 32,500 per day per violation.

For consistency, please provide your answers in a format which is keyed to the sections as
outlined in Attachment III to this letter.



If you have any questions regarding this matter, please contact Mr. Ronald Voelkel at (212) 637-
3156 or voelkel. ronald@epamail epa. gov.

Sincerely yours,

Georg Meyer P.E.
Chlef RCRA Compliance Branch
/ ‘Division of Enforcement and Compliance Assistance

Enclosures:  Attachment I —Notice of Violation

Attachment II — Information Request
Attachment III — Instructions & Definitions

- Attachment IV - Certification of Answers

cc: Thomas Killeen, Chief
Hazardous Waste Compliance Section
New York State Department of Environmental Conservation

bcc: Ronald Voelkel, DECA-RCB
Joel Golumbek, DECA-RCB
RCRA file



ATTACHMENT 1

Notice of Violation
Niagara Ceramics Corp.
EPA ID Number NYD 980 653 109

On or about April 4, 2007, a duly authorized representative of EPA conducted a compliance
evaluation inspection of Niagara Ceramics Corp. located at 75 Hayes Place, Buffalo, NY 14210,
pursuant to Section 3007 of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6927. At the time of the inspection, the
following specific violations applicable to Large Quantity Generators were recorded:

1. Operating an existing hazardous waste management facility without having obtained a
permit, pursuant to 6 NYCRR § 373-1.2(a) by storing hazardous waste for more than 90
days, in violation of 6 NYCRR § 372.2(a)(8)(ii), and by not complying with other
requirements, listed below, necessary for an exemption from permitting.

2. Failure to prepare hazardous waste manifests in accordance with instructions included in
Appendix 30 of 6 NYCRR § 372.2(b)(1) by not listing the appropriate waste code.

At the time of the inspection, approximately 19 boxes of filter cakes which were stated to have
the toxicity characteristic (TC) for lead (D008), and one 55-gallon container of spent solvents,
were being stored for greater than 90 days; the last shipment of hazardous waste was on August
16, 2006 for 44,411 1bs of TC lead hazardous waste. In addition, manifest records indicate that
this waste was given the waste code D006 (TC for Cadmium) rather than D008, although D006
and other toxic constituents can be denoted as additional materials on manifests.

3. 6 NYCRR § 373.9(d)(3) require the generator to clearly mark on each container in storage
areas with the words “Hazardous Waste” and with other words that identify the contents
. of the containers. '

4, 6 NYCRR § 372.2(a)(8)(iii)(d), § 373-1.1(d)(1)(iii)}(c)(2) require the generator to clearly
mark on each container the date upon which each period of accumulation began.

5. 6 NYCRR § 373-3.9(d)(1) requires containers holding hazardous waste to always be
closed during storage, except when it is necessary to add or remove waste.

6. 6 NYCRR § 373-3.3(e) requires facilities to maintain aisle space between rows of
hazardous waste containers to allow the unobstructed movement of personnel, fire
protection equipment, spill control equipment, and decontamination equipment to any
area of facility operation in an emergency.



7. 6NYCRR 6 NYCRR § 373-3.9(e) requires a generator to inspect, at least weekly, areas
where containers are stored, looking for leaking containers and for deterioration of
containers and the containment system caused by corrosion and other factors.

At the time of the inspection, none of the containers of filter cake hazardous waste being stored .
at your facility were labeled with the words “hazardous waste” or were marked with
accumulation start dates; two of these containers were open, and there was no aisle space
between rows of these containers. In addition, one 55- gallon container of spent solvents, located
in the decoration department, was not labeled as hazardous waste, was not marked with
accumulation start date, and was open. Two red cans, containing solvent-soiled rags, and located
in the decoration area, were not labeled as hazardous waste (Satellite accumulation). Also,
approximately 15 boxes and one open drum containing spent fluorescent lamps were not labeled
as either hazardous waste or as Universal Waste or were marked with accumulation start dates;
the drum and at least five of these boxes were open. It was also stated by you that regular weekly
inspections of the hazardous waste storage areas were not conducted.

8. 6 NYCRR § 372.2(a)(8)(iii)(e)(2)(1) requires the posting of the names and telephone
numbers of the emergency coordinators next to the telephone.

9.. 6 NYCRR § 372.2(a)(8)(iii)(e)(2)(ii) requires the posting of the location of fire
extinguishers and spill control material and, if present, fire alarm, next to the telephone

At the time of the inspection, there were no posting of the names and telephone numbers of
emergency responders or with the locatlon of fire extinguishers and of other emergency response
equlpment

If you have any questions regarding these or related matters, please contact Mr. Ronald Voelkel

at (212) 637-4137 or at voelkel.ronald@epa.gov.

Issuance of this Notice of Violation and compliance or non-compliance with the terms of the
attached Information Request does not preclude EPA from taking formal enforcement action
against you, including the assessment of a monetary fine, under § 3008 of RCRA,42 US.C. §
6928, and under any other applicable Federal statute.



ATTACHMENT I

RCRA § 3007 Information Request
Niagara Ceramics Corp.
EPA ID Number NYD 980 653 109

Question 1:

In regards to the violations cited in items 1 through 9 of the above Notice of Violation ,
(Attachment I), please provide a description of the actions taken to correct these violations, and
provide documentation verifying that each violation has been corrected, including the following:

a. copies of manifests showing that the19 boxes of lead filter cake hazardous waste, and
all other hazardous wastes that are stored for greater than 90 days, have been manifested
off-site;

~ b. copies of manifests which show that the lead filter cake waste is appropriated listed on
hazardous waste manifests as D008 (TC for lead) hazardous waste, as well as any other
applicable secondary waste codes;

c. photographs showing that all containers of hazardous wastes (including the red cans

~ containing spent solvent-soiled wipes located in the decoration area) are being labeled as
hazardous waste, are marked with accumulation start dates, as appropriate, and are
closed; '

d. photographs showing that containers of hazardous waste have isle space to allow
access of these hazardous waste containers by facility personnel and equipment;

e. photographs showing that all spent fluorescent lamps have been placed in an enclosure
and that these containers are labeled as either hazardous waste or as Universal waste;

f. copies of postings, near the telephone, denoting the telephone numbers of emergency
responders and the location of fire extinguishers, and

g. a written account of changes in your facility’s waste management practices sufﬁc1ent
to prevent a recurrence of these violations.

Question 2

Quantities of hazardous waste generated by your facility designates Niagara Ceramics as a large
quantity generator (LQG) of hazardous waste. At the time of the April 4, 2007 inspection, the
following documents pertaining to facilities that are defined as LQGs were not available for
review: (1) Contingency Plan, designed to minimize hazards to human health or the environment



from fires, explosions or any unplanned sudden or non-sudden release of hazardous waste or
hazardous waste constituents to air, soil, or surface water; and (2) files of job titles and
description for each position at the Niagara Ceramics’ facility related to hazardous waste
management, including the name of employees filling each job, and the type and amount of
training that were given to each person filling a position related to hazardous waste management.

a. Please submit a copy of Niagara Ceramics’ Contingency Plan; if a Contingency Plan has
not been written, indicate when it will be prepared.

b. Please submit copies of personnel training records indicating the name, job title and
description, and the type and amount of training that has been given to each employee
filling a position related to hazardous waste management at the Niagara Ceramics’
facility. If training records were not developed as described above and/of if training has
not been provided, indicate when the training records will be prepared and when training
will be provided; if training has been provided, please describe what training was
provided and indicate when these records will be submitted. ' |

Question 3

A review of the NYSDEC manifest database indicated that, during calendar year 2005, Niagara
Ceramics manifested a monthly average of about 24,525 lbs of “D006" hazardous waste.
However, during calendar year 2006, only two shipments, totaling 88,700 Ibs, of this waste were
manifested, the first shipment on April 13, 2006 and the second shipment on August 16, 2006
(an average of 5,530 lbs per month); about 40,000 lbs of this waste were being stored at the time
of the April 2007 inspection representing about eight months of accumulated waste (an average
of about 5,000 Ibs per month).

a. Please submit a detailed narrative which would account for the significant decrease in the
quantities of “D006" hazardous waste manifested during calendar year 2005 and
subsequent to 2005.




ATTACHMENT III
Instructions and Definitions

In responding to this Request for Information, apply the following instructions and definitions:

1.

10.

12.

The signatory should be an officer or agent who is authorized to respond on behalf of the company
or facility.

A complete response must be made to each individual question in this request for mformatlon
Identify each answer with the number of the question to which it is addressed.

In preparing your response to each question, consult with all present and former employees and
agents of the company or facility who you have reason to believe may be familiar with the matter to
which the question pertains,

In answering each question, identify all contributing sources of information.

If you are unable to answer a question in a detailed and complete manner or if you are unable to
provide any of the information or documents requested, indicate the reason for your inability to do
so. If you have reason to believe that there is an individual who may be able to provide more detail
or documentation in response to any question, state that person's name and last known address and
phone number and the reasons for your belief.

If you cannot provide a precise answer to any question, please approximate and state the reason for
your inability to be specific.

For each document produced in response to this Request for Information, indicate on the document
or in some other reasonable manner, the number of the question to which it applies.

If anything is deleted from a document produced in response to this Request for Information, state
the reason for and the subject matter of the deletion.

If a document is requested but is not available, state the reason for its unavailability. In addition,
identify any such document by author, date, subject matter, number of pages, and all recipients and .
their addresses.

The company and/or facility for the purposes of this Request for Information is Niagara Ceramics
Corp., located at 75 Hayes Place, Buffalo, NY 14210.

Hazardous waste shall be defined for the purposes of this Request for Information as that term is
defined in Section 1004(5) of RCRA, as amended, 42 U.S.C. Part 6903(5) and in 40 C.F.R., Section
261.3.

Manage shall be defined for the purposes of this Request for Information as a market, generate,
treat, store, dispose or otherwise handle.



13.

Standards applicable to transporters of hazardous waste shall be those as established in 40 C.F.R.
Part 263.

Hazardous constituents shall be defined as those substances listed in 40 C.F.R. Part 261, Appendix

VIIL



ATTACHMENT 1V

Certification of Answers to Responses to Request for Information

1 certify under penalty of law that I have personally examined and am familiar with the
information submitted in this document (response to EPA Request for Information) and all
documents submitted herewith, that the submitted information is true, accurate and complete, and
that all documents submitted herewith are complete and authentic, unless otherwise indicated. [
am aware that there are significant penalties for submitting false information, including the
possibility of fine and imprisonment.

NAME (print or type)

TITLE (print or type)

SIGNATURE

DATE

10
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NIAGARA CERAMICS CORP.

75 Hayes Place Buffalo, New York 14210
Phone: (718) 821-5600 Fax: (716) 821-5608

May 25, 2007

Ronald Voelkel, Environmental Scientist
RCRA Compliance Branch

Yo

Ry}

Div. Enforcement & Compliance Assistance sy 2
USEPA - Region 2 : 5 &=
290 Broadway, 22 Floor s
New York, New York 10007-1866 e 5
Re: Response to Notice of Violation o :‘;
'Niagara Ceramics Corporation, Buffalo, NY = 3
USEPAID #: NYD 980 653 109 o

Dear Mr. Voelkel:

On April 4, 2007, you conducted an inspection at the Niagara Ceramics
Corporation (NCC) facility located at 75 Hayes Place, Buffalo, New York for the -
USEPA to determine the facility's compliance with applicable federal RCRA
regulations (the “inspection”). Subsequently, | received the agency’s April 25, 2007
Notice of Violation (the "Notice’) as prepared for Mr. George C. Meyer, PE, Chief,
Div. Enforcement & Compliance Assistance. This Notice mandates the submittal of
various information related to NCC's management of its hazardous wastes, as
described in Attachment Il to the Notice. This letter represents NCC’s formal
response to the USEPA's requested information.

| would like to indicate that this review process has been an enlightening
experience for NCC personnel. NCC has retained the services of a consultant,
Hazard Evaluations, Inc. (HEI), to assist the facility with the development of its
Release Prevention, Countermeasure and Control Plan, as well as to provide
guidance with various aspects of hazardous waste management. NCC hopes to
take this opportunity to significantly improve its RCRA program to ensure we remain
a good corporate citizen in the greater Buffalo community. Please note that
wherever possible, NCC has corrected deficiencies before this response was
prepared. NCC’'s compliance response activities are described below for your
review and consideration. '

Question 1: Notice Items 1 - 9 Action Descriptions

Item 1 - Exceeding 90 Day Hazardous Waste Storage Rule
As indicated to Mr. Voelkel during the inspection, NCC is a large quantity
hazardous waste generator only. There has never been any intent by NCC to
become a Hazardous Waste Storage Facility as defined in the 6 NYCRR Part
370s regulations. It is also significant to note that NCC’s hazardous waste
glaze and filter cake generation rates vary significantly with production levels




(Attachment 1). The exceedance of the 90 day limit that was identified during
the inspection was related to a significant slowdown in production, which
delayed NCC's request for transport off-site, as a full truckload was not ready
and the time limit was simply overlooked. NCC has implemented a computer
based tracking system (Microsoft Outlook Calendar), managed by myself, to
ensure that the 90 day limit for all of the facility's wastes to which it applies
will not be exceeded in the future. Copies of manifests for the disposal of 22
boxes of hazardous waste glaze, 3 drums of hazardous waste solvent, and
universal waste fluorescent bulbs are also presented in Attachment 1.

Iitem 2 - Improper Waste Codes on Manifests _

During the inspection, the primary waste code entered on NCC's manifests
for waste glaze was noted to be for the Characteristic of Toxicity (Cadmium -
D006) rather than the Characteristic of Toxicity (Lead - DO08). It should be
noted that the waste disposal firm, Chemical Waste Management, routinely
completes the manifests prior to waste pick-up, and used its own computer
system as a basis for selecting these codes. NCC has contacted Chemical
Waste Management to ensure that the code change will be made so that
future manifests will present the waste codes in the proper order. In this
regard, this issue with the new manifesting system should be permanently
resolved. Other codes that were included on the various manifests were
appropriate for additionally noted materials and/or constituents.

Iitems 3 & 4 - Improper Waste Container Labeling

During the inspection, various containers in the existing hazardous waste
storage area did not have the appropriate “Hazardous Waste" and content
labeling visible, nor were the container accumulation start dates applied.
NCC has implernented an employee training program (to be completed
annually) to ensure all affected employees understand the appropriate.
container labeling requirements. Photographs of various containers of
hazardous and universal wastes indicating the appropriate labeling are
presented in Attachment 2.

With respect to the two red cans full of solvent-soiled rags located in the
Decorating Departrnent identified as being Satellite Accumulation containers,
it is NCC's understanding that these rags are subject to NYSDEC Policy
DSH-HW-03-09 “Regulatory Status of Laundered Industrial Rags & Soiled
Clothing”, dated September 24, 2003. In that regard, these rags are subject
to all hazardous waste management regulations until they are loaded on the
vehicle for delivery to the laundry. NCC will ensure that the requirements of
this policy are fully implemented. Photographs of various containers of
hazardous and universal wastes indicating the appropriate labeling are
presented in Attachment 2.



items 5, 6 & 7 - Improper Container Managemerit

During the inspection, various containers in the existing hazardous waste
storage area were not appropriately closed, adequate aisle space was not
provided around the containers, and the container storage areas were not
being inspected weekly. NCC has implemented an employee training
program (to be completed annually) to ensure all affected employees
understand the appropriate container management requirements. The
Universal Waste storage area is now properly.designated and equipped with
signs, USDOT-approved containers and proper labels. Photographs of
various containers indicating the appropriate closure and aisle spacing are
presented in Attachment 2. NCC has also initiated a weekly hazardous
waste accumulation and storage area inspection program to be conducted by
the VP, Engineering, who will also maintain the inspection records
(Attachment 3). :

Items 8 & 9 - Improper Emergency Response Postings
During the inspection, emergency response information was not appropriately

. posted next to the facility telephones. NCC has inspected the entire facility to
verify the locations of fire extinguishers, telephones, eye wash stations, and
spill response equipment. The posting of the required information on
laminated sheets has been completed at each facility telephone location.
Copies of these postings are presented in Attachment 4.

Question 2: Missing Documents

2a - Contingency Plan
During the inspection, the facility's Contingency Plan could not be located.

As a result, an outdated document has been updated to properly reflect
current operations at the NCC facility (Attachment 5).

2b - Employee Job Descriptions and Related Information

During the inspection, job descriptions for all individuals involved with the
management of hazardous wastes were not available, nor were any affected
employee training records. Job descriptions have been prepared for the
various employee classifications (Attachment 6) which describe all relevant
hazardous waste-related activities. With respect to employee training, NCC
is currently refining its list of employees with respect to the various levels of
training required. Some delay in this regard has occurred related to changes
in various job responsibilities such that the group of employees required to be
involved with the management of hazardous wastes is better controlled. NCC
anticipates providing a list of employees, their applicable job titles and
descriptions, and the specific training required (both NYSDEC-mandated and
OSHA-mandated) by June 1, 2007. NCC anticipates that all training can be
completed by June 30, 2007, if classes can be scheduled in-house or
obtained off-site by trainers with appropriate knowledge, training and
experience.




Question 3: D006 Generation Rates

3 - D006 Generation Rates

As described above, NCC'’s hazardous waste glaze and filter cake generation
rates vary significantly with production levels. A narrative addressing this situation is
presented in Attachment 1.

The information presented above provides a concise technical response to
the various deficiencies identified in your agency’s Notice. We sincerely hope that
this submittal is adequate for your agency to complete its assessment of NCC's
response actions. However, if you feel that a submittal of additional selected
documents will further serve your needs, please contact me directly to discuss and
arrange a submittal. Thank you for your cooperation in this matter.

vTY

KF
NCC
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NCC Interoffice Memo

To: File

From: K. Franz

Date: 5/9/2007

RE Colored Glaze Producﬁon vs. Waste Overvlew for EPA Response

The following is summary of waste glaze verses production shipments for 2004, 2005 and 2006.

Since inception (March 2004), Niagara Ceramics Corporation has produced, and still does produce
colored glazed products for its customers. This process by nature increases this particular Hazardous
Waste streamn as production, and the number of color changeovers increase, due to the machine wash
down function mixing different unique color fonmulations.

From March of 2004 through June of 2008 we as a company shipped from 2,480, to as high as 10,060
dozens of colored glazed products to our customers each month, with an average of 6243 dozens per
month. During the same period we had shipments of the waste stream associated with this process
averaging one full truckload (approximately 22 tons) every 75 days.

Subsequent to June of 2006 to present (4/30/07) this business has essentially gone away, with
average product shipments per month for this period of 220 dozens with a high of 1175 for July 2006.
Over the same period we have only shipped two truckloads, one happening subsequent to the EPA
inspection. :

Another point to note for calendar year 2005 is that timing of shipments played a major role in the
apparent high generation for that year as seven shipments took place that year with one each in the
first and last weeks of the year. A '

End of report.
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1. 2. 3 4,

20. Designated Facility Owner or Operator: Certification of receipt of hazardous materials covered by the manifest except as noted in ftem 188 -~ -
Printed/Typed Name Signature Month  Day Year

 EPA B BT00.22 (Rev. 305] Pravious edions aro osolte -~ DESIGNATED FACILITY TO DESTINATION STATE {f REQUIRED} -




R E Y Powerful Tradition. . .
Electrifying Future.

LUK ORI SERVICING INDUSTRY » BUSINESS > HOME

EPAID #: NYR 000115204

CERTIFICATE OF RECYCLING/DISPOSAL

Issued to:

Generator Name: Niagara Ceramics . Address: 75 Hayes Place

: Buffalo, NY 14210
Customer Name: Niagara Ceramics Address: 75 Hayes Place

Buffalo, NY 14210

Project/Invoice Number: 6279 | Shipping Document Date: 5/2/07
Waste Stream Description Quantity Received
Fluorescent 4’ & Less | 720
Fluorescent 5’ + » - 24

The above Waste Items have been received, managed and recycled in accordance with all
applicable local, state and federal regulations.

e e el
Authorized Frey Electric Signature >

100 Pearce Avenue Phone: 716/874-1710
Tonawanda, New York 14150 Fax: 716/874-0203
Web: www.frey-electric.com Email: info@frey-eleciric.com

(24/7 |
EMERGENCY
SERVICE
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Hazardous Waste
Waste Glaze Storage Inspection Log
Niagara Ceramics Corporation.

2007
Weel | Number | Boxesstored/ | y,iector Remarks
of boxes | labeled correctly __
A | 2.5 Vs fan | Logavereo e e
S/l 3 S Fms 2
/el 3 {55 | Aoz




Hazardous Waste
Universal Waste Storage Inspection Log
Niagara Ceramics Corporation

2007
Week Number | Stored/labeled | { . tor Remarks
of boxes correctly — =RECtOL -
S | o0 — Ahiz_
% / o5 ) StaeT Dpve 3’/‘%7
Shs | 155 Faz ]




Hazardous Waste
Outside Storage Inspection Log
Niagara Ceramics Corporation

2007
Week Number Drums stored/ Inspector Remarks
of drums | labeled correctly
:/ Y| 0 — 1 A
7 R R
Shg | o ~ Flani2
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EMERGENCY NOTIFICATION LIST

Facility Emergency Coordinator

Karl Franz, Vice President, Engineering
plant: (716) 824-8515; ext. 205
cell: (716) 983-7945 ‘
home: (716) 667-7577

First Alternate Facility Emergency Coordinator
Don Hale, Maintenance Supervisor

plant: (716) 824-8515; ext. 223

cell: (716) 984-2079

home: (716) 892-7601

Second Alternate Facility Emergency Coordinator
Carl Huckins, Maintenance Engineer

plant: (716) 824-8515; ext. 262

cell: (716) 982-2056

home: (716) 895-1137

Buffalo Police Department (South District) 911 or (716) 8514409
Buffalo Fire Department 911 or (716) 851-3822
Mercy Hospital (716) 826-7000
Ambulance Service (Rural Metro) 911 or (716) 882-8400
Buffalo Sewer Authority (716) 883-1820
City of Buffalo Dept. of Public Works (716) 847-1065
Erie County Department of Emergency Services (716) 858-6262
Erie County Department of Health (716) 898-4225
NYSDEC Spill Response (716) 852-7220
Poison Control Center of Western New York (800) 888-7655
National Response Center (800) 424-8802

CHEMTREC (800) 424-9300
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RELEASE PREVENTION, CONTROL
AND COUNTERMEASURE PLAN
(RPCC)

" Prepared For:
Niagara Ceramics Corporation
75 Hayes Place -
Buffalo, New York 14210

Prepared By:
Hazard Evaluations, Inc.
~ 3836 N. Buffalo Road
Orchard Park, New York 14127

 Revised May 2007
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1.0 GENERAL FACILITY INFORMATION

1.1 Background
This Release Prevention, Control and Countermeasure Plan (RPCC) has

been prepared for Niagara Ceramics Corporation (NCC), located at 75 Hayes Place,
City of Buffalo, Erie County, New York (Figure 1; Appendix A) in accordance with
federal and New York State regulations regarding the storage of hazardous
-materials and the prevention and control of such releases.

The federal Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA), Clean Water
Act (CWA) and the Superfund Amendment and Reautharization Act (SARA) require
industrial facilities to develop plans to minimize the risks of unplanned releases of
hazardous materials and wastes. Some of the applicable regulations are enforced
by the USEPA, and others are enforced by the NYSDEC under federally approved
state regulations. This plan incorporates the Contingency Plan requirements of the
RCRA and the NYSDEC's 6 NYCRR Part 370 regulations, and the Emergency
Response Plan requirements of SARA Title lil into one document.

This plan is designed to provide information regarding the bulk storage
requirements for the facility’'s batch lead-based glaze and petroleurn products, as
well as ‘engineering controls and operating procedures necessary to minimize
hazards to human health and environment from fires, explosions and releases from
hazardous substances from the NCC facility to the air, soil, surface waters and
groundwater. This plan also presents preventative actions and emergency response
procedures to be followed in the event of an emergency (i.e., unplanned hazardous
material or waste release, fire, explosions, etc.). Designated employees of the NCC
facility have become familiar with the contents of this plan, and are trained to carry
out the necessary procedures either as an on-site location team, or in concert with
the NYSDEC, the Erie County Department of Emergency Services, and/or City of
Buffalo response agencies.

1.2 General Facility Information
Facnllty Nlagara Cerarnics Corporatnon
75 Hayes Place
Buffalo, New York 14210

Facility Permits: USEPA ID#: NYD980653109
NYSDEC Air Facility ID#: 9-1402-00073/02000
BSA Sewer Use Permit ID#: BU228

1.3  Facility Location & Description

The Nlagara Ceramics Corporation (NCC) facnlty is located in western New
York State, within the limits of the City of Buffalo in an industrial area. The facility is
located within the Erie-Ontario Lake Plain Physiographic Province, which is
characterized by the topography of an abandoned lake bed. Bedrock underlying




Erie Couhty consists of the Upper Silurian and the Middie and Upper
Devonian period. Onondaga Limestone, the lowest formation of the Devonian
period, underlies the NCC facility. :

The Niagara Ceramics Corporation facility is bound to the north by CONRAIL
railroad tracks and beyond by commercial properties, to the east by Bailey Avenue
and beyond by undeveloped property and NYS Thruway right-of-way, to the south
by ERB Co. and beyond by Seneca Street, and to the west by Hayes Place and
beyond by NCC parking areas and then residential properties. Virtually all of the
properties surrounding NCC are used for either industrial or commercial purposes
(See Figure 1 - Appendix A).

The Buffalo River is located less than one mile south of the NCC facility.
NCC's sanitary discharges and a limited amount of process wastewater are
conveyed directly to the City of Buffalo's public sewerage system along Hayes
Place, as managed by the Buffalo Sewer Authority (BSA). The majority of the
facility's non-process and process wastewaters are discharged to Niagara Ceramics
Corporation's in-plant wastewater pre-treatment system, and then to the City's public
sewerage system. Stormwater runoff from the facility's rooftops and portions of the
parking areas also discharge to the public sewerage system. There is a very low
potential for any release of petroleum or hazardous materials/wastes to the public
sewerage system due to the secondary containment systems associated with the
petroleum and hazardous materials/wastes storage areas, along with the in-plant
pre-treatment system.

Niagara Ceramics Corporation manufactures large volumes of china
dinnerware. NCC utilizes various manufacturing operations such as batch mixing of
clay slurries, molding, decorating, tumbling, glazing and firing to produce its end
products (Figure 2). These operations result in the generation of various industrial
solid and hazardous wastes, including waste glaze, various waste oils and broken
ware. Process chemicals and petroleum are stored in several areas of the facility.
Clay materials in slurry form are prepared and stored in large tanks located in the
Old Sliphouse in Building A and the New Sliphouse in Building J.

1.4 Statement of Release Plan Policy

Niagara Ceramics Corporation's management has agreed to use whatever
personnel, equipment and/or materials are necessary to control releases of
regulated substances at the NCC facility. The priorities of response team members
are based upon the protection of human life, mitigating environmental harm and
protection of property, respectively. The principal responsible members of NCC's
management tearn have reviewed this document, and have certified the accuracy of
the information presented herein. ‘

1.5 History of Releases
NCC has no history of releases of hazardous materials since the firm's
inception in 2004.
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NIAGARA CERAMICS CORP.

75 Hayes Place Buffalo, New York 14210
Phone: (716) 821-5600 Fax: (718) 82|-5608

May 31, 2007

Ronald Voelkel, Environmental Scientist
RCRA Compliance Branch

Div. Enforcement & Compliance Assistance
USEPA - Region 2

290 Broadway, 22 Floor

New York, New York 10007-1866

Re: Follow up letter to Response to Notice of Violation
Niagara Ceramics Corporation, Buffalo, NY
USEPA ID #: NYD 980 653 109

Dear Mr. Voelkel:

On May 25, 2007, Niagara Ceramics Corporation (NCC) facility located at 75
Hayes Place, Buffalo, New York responded to violations citied the agency's April 25,
2007 Notice of Violation (the "Notice’) as prepared for Mr. George C. Meyer, PE,
Chief, Div. Enforcement & Compliance Assistance. This letter is a continuation of
our reponse to Question 2b of the notice.

Question 2: Missing Documents

2b - Employee Job Descriptions and Related Information

During the inspection, job descriptions for all individuals involved with the
management of hazardous wastes were not available, nor were any affected
employee training records. Job descriptions have been prepared for the various
employee classifications and were attached to the initial reponse dated May 25,
2007 as Attachment 6. The list of specific employees whom will be be trained are
as follows (Attachment 1) arranged by job title.

We sincerely hope that this submittal is adequate for your agency to help
complete its assessment of NCC’s response actions. However, if you feel that a
submittal of additional selected documents will further serve your needs, please
.contact e directly to discuss and arrange a submittal. Thank you for your

cooperation in this matter. :

KF
NCC



Attachment 1

Employees to be Trained and Job Title

VP Engineering
: Karl Franz
Supervisor Maintenance
Carl Huckins
Don Hale
Mike Mahiques?
Maintenance Millwright/Electrician :
Ron Becker
Chet Romen
-Dan Savage
Dan Sabadasz
Pete Mckeown
Bruce Joyce
Supervisor Glost/Color
Peter Blach
Geno Furler
Joe Leonarczyak
Andrea Favors
Bill Wasielewski
China Operator-Glost
Mark Harrington
Columbus Brooks.
Glaze/Color Setup '
Tony Clark

Supervisor Decorating/Decal
Jim Ventura
Linda Morgan
Bruce Lewis
Decorating Technician
Robin Mongoivi
Emmy Oluette
China Operator-Decorating/Decal
Nancy Trala
Kiln Fireman '
Calvin Cawthon
Frank Trala
Charles Schalberg
Ed Sarvis
John Bartolucci



ATTACHMENT IV

Certification of Answers to Responses to Request for Information

I certify under penalty of law that I have personally examined and am familiar with the
information submitted in this document (response to EPA Request for Information) and all
documents submitted herewith, that the submitted information is true, accurate and complete, and
that all documents submitted herewith are complete and authentic, unless otherwise indicated. I
am aware that there are significant penalties for submitting false information, including the
possibility of fine and imprisonment. '

///#LL_ . / KW?__

NAME (print or type)

l//) S it €T M
TITLE (print or type)

?fo/ﬂf

SIGNATURE b ~

10
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BUFFALO CHINA, INC., BUFFALO, NEW YORK 14240

December 3, 1982

EPA Region II

Information Service Center
26 Federal Plaza

716/824-8515

z
<
‘;y":‘ o g > .
= :
New York, N Y 10007 7% o
E o
- ' - -y
" Gentlemen: s S = ;
. ) = ‘2_" o [
Enclosed 1s a completed form on notification of = ~
hazardous waste activity. We did not complete these '
forms when originally received as we generate appreclably
less than 1000 -Kg/month of hazardous waste.
7

Through an oversight we accumulated more than 1000
Kg of contamlnated degreaser solvent and had 1t collected
by an authorized disposal service several days ago.

transport the material we had to complete a N.Y
hazardous waste manifest which requi
number.

To
State

res an E.R.A. I/D

As we understand it, to obtain an I/D number requires

the completed form enclosed. We trust that the form is

properly completed and you can furnish us with the
necessary 1/D number. ' . '

~Sincerely,

BUFFALO CHINA, INC.
7 C

%"MM
‘Harold Corser

Dir. of Engineering
/3p
cc: L. Rickard
R. Saunders

B R



e

Please print or type with ELITE type ( 72 charactem/ nch) in the unshaded areas only. GSA No. 0246-£PA-OT
) 1 NM:NTAL PROTECTION‘AGENCY i )

: ADETACHA

L R e e S A

A #ETAC& A :

CONTINUE ON REVERSE

EPA Form 8700-12 (6-80)



' HDV-\.30'

g

“YHovisay.

NAME & OFFICIAL TITLE (type orprir':t)
AAROLD CopRSERL

,Z/eecwc O EANGINEELING.

DATE SIGNED

/z/z/ez.

" EPA Form B700-12 (6-80) REVERSE

gt A ‘3“
cagl AR YO ‘
1w w“ﬁ?w RACHIANS

» llDE\C\"J?j' 2%
. o § B0
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716/824-8515

March ~37-.1983

wid egoes3/08 o =
United States Environmental o
Protectlion Agency
Region II

26 Federal Plaza
New York, N Y 10278

Si%) Dear Sir:
; ".‘%.,) ‘ \,\};’() . ‘
RS ‘We are in receipt of your letter dated February 22, 1983
X.t 1. received on February 28th requesting a reply by March 4th.
“L ‘; lN“JU T

After studying your letter and U4OCFR we are still unsure
of what action we should take. As explained in our letter of
December..3, 1982, we "dirty" a small amount (less than 1000Kg/
month) of degreaser solvent. CECOS an authorized disposal
service collects the solvent and incinerates it. To transport
the 1Initial quantity we had collected since using this solvent
which was more than 1000 Kg, CECOS required an EPAI/D number
which we requested in our letter of December 3rd. We are now
trying to only store up to 1000 Kg before having CECOS collect
it. - _ '

~ In the réquest for the I/D number we may have incorrectly
marked box C sectlon VI. Our interpretation was that as we
had initially stored more than 1000 Kg then we should mark
box C. What we di1d not do was complete the card requesting
Part A which 1s required if box C 1s marked. If you need the
completed card please let us know and we will mail it to you
immediately.

Sincerely,

BUFFALO CHINA, INC.

. .
T /_///%n.._ug,_,

Harold Corser
Dir. of Engineering

/3p

BUFFALO CHINA, INC., BUFFALO, NEW YORK 14240
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3 Y 7 9%, Pul. 94-580 (1976),)

By mtifma*im, you hfarmﬁ E‘W ttmt ym m'ammt activities at the abowe

;&*@t&rm@. f;acz.iitv invalving "nagardous waste,® B, that tare i defloed in
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Was, -BREingG .,B*‘ 2 geverator by producing bazardous waste,

40 CFR Part 264. 34;‘ eﬁ?;a*\ilutx&ﬁ s&f argarns for gewerstors who scoumulete hasait-
: ‘ is em:v.ieact <:~'~ i’dm Zgu:_ inmrg:wraua
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vwif\w»~ tuat me~ byen) *le:iq:‘._._ s




acoumulation ccmﬁor’!‘* o cortain re guletions, At the time of the inmpsction,
it wes revealed t,? at 3m ftec’i'“t; cif rot meet the requirerents of:

¢ 40 CFR 262, 3/1(;7(") vﬁic’* yequires s ganerator to comply with the reguire-
ments in 40¢ CFR 265 Subparts I {Containers) ent J (iaﬁh). At the timr
of tbs inﬁgmctxdk, cortainers and/or tarks were observed which failed tc
orsply fully with those Subparts, You were therefore in violation of 40
CFR 262.34(8){1). :

e 80 CFR §3652,3: 4(ui( 2) wihich rw.ggliraf the gate wupon which each perion of
accumuiation bepine to te clearly mwsrkes and visible for inspection on
each cvmrair-r*r, ¥ wpre t rerefees in viclation of 40 OF 262.34(a)(2).

© 40 CFr £262.33(a)(3) which rsmuwaﬂ each container or tank acowmulating
hazerdmir waste to be marked or lsbeled clearly witk the words, “Barardous
Vagte ,* Yo were therefore ir viclation of 40 CFR 262.34(8){3). '

° a¢ CFR §26%.34 (a)(d) w‘ziﬂh roguires & gersrstor to comply with the re-
quirements in 40 CFR 265 ‘iubpart C (Pmmmﬁ ¢ ey Prevention) and 40
CPR 268 subpart T {Couting Plan snd Pmergency Procedures) and with
§265.16 {Personnel ’f‘miviw}. Yo were therefore in viclation of 40 CHF
2€2.34(8)(4),

sf' 40w §:z£ﬁ34i’%f}*"séﬁém{' Emf m ’{;@mx&m m’ o> o mz;at««,,s"‘hagéiﬁém«- weste

L oand 2&., and the y&mit mqmr
4t ‘ ¢ he ir;sﬁmtim. woste had boer acCumilated
m’a re for more thar 80 ﬁa '5 without total compliance with above regulations
govsrning operators of stsra-ge tacilities, You were therefore in viclation of
40 CFR 262.341h)

Bection 30082 of the Act euthorizes the asssssment of 2 civil penalty of up to
€25,0600 per dey for violations ef ststutory previsions or relevant regulations.
The detemim:tim of whether e penelty is to be imposed Is based upon the naturs
and serisusness of the violation and the good faith efforts tc comply with the
gprlicshle rs»qwrwmm. It has bheen determined in this case that no penalty
will ke imposec for the vicletions cn:er ghxwe if the facility corpvects all
viclations cited herein as expediticusly as poseible an” in no case later

than sixty (60) days fror the receipt m thiﬁ letter, should the cited vie-
lations bo -t‘iﬂcewrm@ at this facility during future inespections, it is likely
thet an action for the assessrent of & civil penalty will be initiates,
Furthermoge, please b adviess thet this letter ir me woy, precludes future
enforcement actions for eny other vimiﬂ ione discovered asn & result of any
other }ﬂ"”“‘ﬁ‘"’t}t}ﬂ '




LE%

Flease contire in writing within sixty (60) deys of your rooeipd of this letter
that the above referencer violations have beer corrects et incluwk swpporting
dommentation a8 appropriete,. This oopfiresticon should be addressed to:

. Ermest A. Begns
Chief, G Weste Branch

ALy and wwoie Management Divisior

U, 5. Enviromments] Protection Agency, keglon I3
26 Federal Plaze

Wew York, WY . 10278

. Richare &, Baker
Chief, Pemmits Rminietration Branch -
U, &, Enviromwmental Protection agency, Regior I1

2¢ Federal ¥Flaze
Mev York, ®WY 1027¢

ana

. Robert mitrey, P.E,
Regional Solid Waste Engineer, Region 9
hew York State Department of Env mmnm Conservation
51 Delaware Averme
Fuffalo, ¥Y 14202

You pust inclucde vour Eph identification mmber on all corvespondence,

- Bhowdd 'you have questions about this Notlee or should you wish to ¢iscuss this
matter furthey, please contact Frank langore of my staff at {212) 264-2073,

R copy of the inspection report is enclosed,

Sinoerely yours,

‘meet &. Begna
Chie
Eood 1("’ Wasic Branc%

Enclosure .

oo Devid Mafriel, C’hef
Buresy of Hazirdous Wasie Cperaticms, NYRDEC, w/oe encl, ‘

. Robert Mitrey, PBUE,
Regiore) B0lid Waste Brgireer, Reclon 9, WKYSDEC, w/C encl.

hoc: Frank Langone, 2A-5W w/encl.
kRichard 2. PRaker, 2P4PA w/C encl, i
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BUFFALO CHINA, INC., BUFFALO, NEW YORK 14240

716/824-8515

ﬁj\gu“ O:;b March 28, 1984

Mr. Ernest A. Regna

Chief, Solid Waste Branch

Air and Waste Management Division

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Reglon 11
26 Federal Plaza

New York, New York 10278

Dear Mr. Regna: ' , : —

t‘\v\'\

With regard to your letter received on February 93 198H
enclosed is a copy of our preliminary Hazardous Waste Prcgram
We would appreciate your comments on its format and conient',r

Immedlately after the visit of Mr. Langone on December IQ,
1983 we implemented his recommendations of inspecting the | =
drums weekly for leakage, marking the drums, and locating two;z
fire extinguishers and absorbent material adjacent to our §
storage area. Last week one of our local fire chiefs reviewed
our hazardous waste handling and storage and more visits are
planned. As you may know we now send our hazardous waste to
Envirotek in Buffalo who reclaim it and return the cleaned
solvent back to us.

Now that we have a Hazardous Waste Program we can start
reviewing it with our employees, but before doing so we would
appreciate your comments. We trust that we have complied with
the requirements in your letter. There is, however, one para-
graph that we do not fully understand and that is 40CFR 262
34 (a) (1). We assume that it relates only to the drum stor-
age area being inspected weekly and the reference to tanks is
not applicable. '

Sincerely,

BUFFALO CHINA, INC.

/nl Harold Corser
Director of Engineering

enc.

cc: Mr. Richard Baker
Mr. Robert - Mitrey, P.E.
Mr. Jack Rudnick - Oneida Ltd.
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Niagara China - Page 1 of 1

HOME

COMPANY

[T RN IR
COMMEMORATIVE
CORPORATE

CUSTOM DESIGN
& PRODUCTION

RETAIL BUYERS
FOR HOME

CUSTOMER SERVICE

CONTACT US

http://www.niagaraceramics. :om/business/index.htm | 8/23/2007
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Copyright 2007 .Dun & Bradstreet - Provided under contract

for the exclusive use of subscriber 264750059L

" ATTN: RONALD VOELKL : Report Printed: AUG 09

2007
In Date

NIAGARA CERAMICS CORPORATION
75 Hayes Pl
Buffalo, NY 14210

This is a single location. | D-U-N-S® Number: 00-210-8157
I

Telephone: 716 821-5600 | D&B Rating: 1R3

Chief executive: ROBERT LUPICA, PRES| Number of 1R is 10 or more
| employees: employees .

Year started: 1901 |
| Composite credit 3 is fair.

Management control: 2004 | appraisal:



Employs: 250 |
| D&B PAYDEX®:

History: CLEAR |
_ | 12-Month D&B 78

Financing: _ SECURED | PAYDEX:

l
Sic: 3262 | When weighted by dollar amount,

| payments to suppliers average 3 days
Line of business: Mfg vitreous china | beyond terms.

tableware |

| Based on trade collected over last
| 12 months.

D&B Rating: 1R3

Number of 1R indicates 10 or more employees.
employees:

Composite credit 3 is fair.

appraisal: ' '

The 1R and 2R ratings categories reflect company size based on the total
number of employees for the business. They are assigned to business files
that . ' ‘

do not contain a current financial statement. In 1R and 2R Ratings, the 2, 3,
or 4 creditworthiness indicator is based on analysis by D&B of public
filings,

trade payments, business age and other important factors. 2 is the highest
Composite Credit Appraisal a company not supplying D&B with current financial
information can receive.

Below is an overview of the company's rating history since 04/08/04:

D&B Rating Date Applied
1R3 10/07/04
-- 04/08/04

The Summary Analysis section reflects information in D&B's file as of August
6, 2007. ‘ .

If you have questions about this report, please call our Customer Resource
Center at 1.800.234.3867 from anywhere within the U.S. If you are outside
the '
U.S. contact your local D&B office.

*** Additional Decision Support Available ***

Additicnal D&B products, monitoring services and specialized investigations
are available to help you evaluate this company or its industry. Call Dun &
Bradstreet's Customer Resource Center at 1.800.234.3867 from anywhere within
the U.S. or visit our website at www.dnb.com

The following information was reported 02/07/2007:
Officer(s): ROBERT LUPICA, PRES
RICK REICHARD, CFO



DIRECTOR(S) : THE OFFICER(S)

Business started 1901 by Buffalo Pottery Co. Present control succeeded March
2004. 100% of capital stock is owned by officers.

CONTROL CHANGE:

On April 7 2004, inside sources stated Oneida Ltd has completed the sale of
certain assets of its Buffalo China dinnerware factory to Niagara Ceramics
Corporation in a management led buyout. Robert Lupica, former senior vice
president of Oneida, has been named President. Further information was not
available.

ROBERT LUPICA. Antecedents are undetermined.

RICK REICHARD. 2004-present active here.

CORPORATE AND BUSINESS REGiSTRATIONS REPORTED BY THE SECRETARY OF STATE OR
OTHEK OFFICIAL SOURCE AS OF JUL 20 2007:
The following data is not an official record of the Department of State or

the
State of New York and Dun & Bradstreet is not an employee or agent thereof.

Registered Name: : NIAGARA CERAMICS CORPORATION

Business type: CORPORATION

Corporation type: . PROFIT

Date incorporated: FEB 18 2004

State of incorporation: NEW YORK

Filing date: FEB 18 2004

Registration ID: 3014779

Duration: . PERPETUAL

Status: ACTIVE

Where filed: SECRETARY OF STATE/CORPORATION DIVISION,
ALBANY, NY A

Principals: ROBERT LUPICA, CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD, 75

HAYES PLACE, BUFFALO, NY, 142100000

02/07/2007
Description: Manufactures vitreous china table and kitchenware,
specializing in tableware (100%).
Has 1,500 account(s). Terms are cash, check or credit
card, net 10 days and contractual basis. Sells to
. commercial concerns. )
Nonseasonal.
Employees: 250 which includes officer(s). )
Facilities: i . Owns 210,000 sg. ft. in a two story brick building.
* * * GIC & NAICS * * =
SIC: Based on information in our file, NAICS:
D&B has assigned this company an
extended B8-digit SIC. D&B's use of 327112 Vitreous China, Fine
8-digit SICs enables us to be more Earthenware, and Other
specific to a company's operations Pottery Product

than if we use the standard Manufacturing



4-digit code.

32629904 Tableware, vitreous
china

The D&B PAYDEX -is a unique, dollar weighted indicator of payment perfbrmance
based on up to 54 payment experiences as reported to D&B by trade references.

3-Month D&B PAYDEX: 78 | 12-Month D&B PAYDEX: 78
: |

When weighted by dollar amount, | Wwhen weighted by dollar amount,
payments to suppliers average 3 days | payments to suppliers average 3
days
beyond terms. ‘ | beyond terms.

. I
Based on trade collected over last 3 | Based on trade collected over last
months. | 12 months.

|
| When dollar amounts are not

| considered, then approximately 89%

| of the company's payments are within
| terms. :

The Payment Summary section reflects payment information in D&B's file as of
the date of this report. ' ,

Below is an overview of the company's dollar-weighted payments, segmented by
its suppliers' primary industries: ‘

- Total . Largest W/In Days Slow

Total Dollar “ High Terms
<31 31-60 61-90 90>

Rcv'd Amounts Credit

(#) (8) (%) (%) (%)

Top industries:
Trucking non-local 7 22,000 15,000 62 37 - 1
Nonclassified 6 - 28,600 15,000 100 - - ~
Public finance 5 6,400 5,000 100 - - -
Whol electrical equip 5 5,850 2,500 79 21 - -
Railroad 2 6,000 5,000 83 17 - -
Coating/engrave svcs 1. 55,000 55,000 100 - - -
Paper mill 1 15,000 15,000 100 - - -
Mfg gypsum products 1 10,000 10,000 100 - - -

Misc business credit 1 10,000 10,000 - 100 - -



Gas production/distrb

OTHER INDUSTRIES
1

Other payment categori
Cash experiences
Payment record unknown

Unfavorable comments

1

20

es:
0

Placed for collections:

With D&B
‘Other
Total in D&B's file

The highest "Now Owes"
The highest "Past Due"

54

7,500

21,300

6,750

194,400

on file is $5,000
on file is $1,000
D&B receives over 600 million payment experiences each year. We enter these
new andupdated experiences into D&B Reports as this information isreceived.

Detailed payment histo
Date Paying
Sale
Reported Record
Within
{mm/yy)
(months)
07/07 Ppt
Ppt
mos

Ppt-Slow 30
Ppt-Slow 30
06/07 Disc
mos _
Disc-Ppt
Ppt
Ppt
mos
Ppt
Ppt
Ppt
Ppt
Ppt

mos
Ppt

ry
High

Credit
(%)
5,000
2,500
1,000
250
10,000
15,000
55,000
15,000
10,000
7,500
5,000
2,500
1,000

1,000

250

2,500

5,000
5,000

5,000

250

7,500

5,000

5,000

100 -

94 5

Selling

Terms

N30

N15

N15

N30

Las

t



mos

mos

05/07

mos

mos

04/07
mos
03/07
mos
02/07
mos
01/07
mos
12/06

11/06
mos

mos

08/06
mos

mos
07/06
mos
06/06
mos
05/06

Ppt

Ppt

Ppt

Ppt

Ppt

Ppt
Ppt-Slow 15
Ppt-Slow 30
Ppt-Slow 120
Slow 20
Slow 70

Ppt

Ppt
Ppt

Ppt
Ppt

Ppt

Ppt

Ppt

Ppt

Slow 30
(036)

Ppt

(038)

Satisfactory.

Ppt
Slow 30
(041)
Ppt
Ppt

Ppt

1,000
500
500
500
250
250

15,000

2,500

500
10,000
250
5,000
2,500
2,500

500

250
250
250
1,000
500
100

50

750

1,000
5,000
250
5,000

1,000

500
250
250

1,000

2,500

250

250

100

N30

N30

N30

N30

N30

N30

N30

N30

N30

1 mo

1 mo

1 mo

1 mo

1 mo



Ppt

Ppt

Ppt
03/06 (048)
mos
02/06 Ppt
mos

Ppt
mos

(051)
01/0s6 Ppt
mos )
12/05 Ppt
mos

Ppt
mos

250

100

50

1,000 0 0
1,000 0 0
750 0 0
250 100 100

2,500 0 0

500 o 0

100 0 0

N15 6-12

N30

Payment experiences reflect how bills are met in relation to the terms

granted. In some instances payment beyond terms can be the result of disputes
over merchandise, skipped invoices etc.
Each experience shown is from a separate supplier. Updated trade experiences
replace those previously reported.

02/07/2007
On February 7, 2007,

attempts to contact the management of this business have

been unsuccessful. Outside sources confirmed operation and location.

The followihg Public
the official record.
source.

Filing data is for information purposes only and is not
Certified copies can only be obtained from the official

Collateral:
Aall

Type:

Sec. party:
Debtor:

Filing number:
" Filed with:
Date filed:

Latest Info Received:

All Assets including

proceeds and products -

Inventory including proceeds and products - All
Account (s} including proceeds and products - All

General intangibles(s)
products - and OTHERS
Original

CITIZENS BANK, N.A.,

including proceeds and

ALBANY, NY

NIAGARA CERAMICS CORPORATION

0611060881257

SECRETARY OF STATE/UCC DIVISION, ALBANY, NY

11/06/2006
©11/25/2006



. Collateral:

Type:
Sec. party:

Debtor:

Filing number:

Filed with:

Date filed:

Latest Info Received:

Collateral:

Type:
Sec. party:

Debtor:

Filing number:

Filed with:

Date filed:

Latest Info Received:

Debtor:

Filing number:

Filed with:

Date filed:

Latest Info Received:

Original UCC filed date:

Original filing no.:

‘Collateral:

Type:

Sec. party:

TX

Debtor:

Filing number:

Filed with:

Date filed:

Latest Info Received:

Collateral:

Type:
Sec. party:

Debtor:

Filing number:

Filed with:

Date filed:

Latest Info Received:

Type:

Sec. party:
Debtor:

Filing number:

All Assets

Original

WACHOVIA BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, AS
COLLATERAL AGENT, NEW YORK, NY

BUFFALO CHINA, INC.

0610170831405

SECRETARY OF STATE/UCC DIVISION, ALBANY NY
10/17/2006

11/07/2006

All Assets

Original

CREDIT SUISSE, CAYMAN ISLANDS BRANCH, AS
ADMINISTRATIVE AGENT, NEW YORK, NY

BUFFALO CHINA, INC. -

0609150749732

SECRETARY OF STATE/UCC DIVISION, ALBANY, NY
08/15/2006

10/09/2006

Amendment

CREDIT SUISSE, CAYMAN ISLANDS BRANCH, AS
ADMINISTRATIVE AGENT, NEW YORK, NY CREDIT
SUISSE, CAYMAN ISLANDS BRANCH, AS COLLATERAL
AGENT, NEW YORK, NY

BUFFALO CHINA, INC.

0610170831417

SECRETARY OF STATE/UCC DIVISION, ALBANY, NY
©10/17/2006

11/07/2006

09/15/2006

0609150749732

Negotiable instruments including proceeds and

products - Inventory inecluding proceeds and
products - Accounts receivable including
proceeds and products - Account (s) including
proceeds and products - and OTHERS

Original

JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A.

BUFFALO CHINA, INC.
0603220255726

SECRETARY OF STATE/UCC DIVISION, ALBANY, NY
03/22/2006

04/27/2006

Agssets

Original

MANUFACTURERS AND TRADERS TRUST COMPANY,
BUFFALQO, NY

NIAGARA COLD DRAWN CORP.

20088728

SECRETARY OF STATE/UCC DIVISION DOVER, DE
12/05/2001

02/01/2002

Termination

GREATER BUFFALO SAVINGS BANK, BUFFALO, NY
NIAGARA CERAMICS CORPORATION
0611150909422

AS AGENT, HOUSTON,



Filed with:

Date filed:

Latest Info Received:
Original UCC filed date:
Original filing no.:

Type:

Sec. party:

Debtor:

Filing number:

Filed with:

Date filed:

Latest Info Received: .
Original UCC filed date:
Original filing no.:

Type:

Sec. party:

Debtor:

Filing number:

Filed with:

Date filed:

Latest Info Received:
Original UCC filed date:
Original filing no.:

Sec. party:

Debtor:

Filing number:

Filed with:

Dateé filed:

Latest Info Received:
‘Original UCC filed date:
Original filing no.:

Type:

Sec. party:

Debtor: -

Filing number:

Filed with:

Date filed:

Latest Info Received:
Original UCC filed date:
"Original filing no.:

SECRETARY OF STATE/UCC DIVISION, ALBANY, NY
11/15/2006

12/20/2006

03/15/2004

0403150270212

Termination

GREATER BUFFALO SAVINGS BANK, BUFFALO, NY
NIAGARA CERAMICS CORPORATION '
0611150909410

SECRETARY OF STATE/UCC DIVISION, ALBANY, NY
11/15/2006

12/20/2006

03/15/2004

0403150270197

Termination

A&L HOLDING COMPANY, LLC, BUFFALO, NY
NIAGARA CERAMICS CORPORATION

0611150909408

SECRETARY OF STATE/UCC DIVISION, ALBANY, NY
11/15/2006

12/20/2006

03/22/2004

0403220293986

Termination

GREATER BUFFALO SAVINGS BANK, BUFFALO, NY
NIAGARA CERAMICS CORPORATION

0611150909395 .

SECRETARY OF STATE/UCC DIVISION, ALBANY, NY
11/15/2006

12/20/2006

03/15/2004

0403150270185

Termination

COBBLESTONE ENTERPRISES, LLC, CLARENCE, NY
NIAGARA CERAMICS CORPORATION

0611150909383

SECRETARY OF STATE/UCC DIVISION, ALBANY, NY
11/15/2006

12/20/2006

03/22/2004

0403220293912

The public record items contained in this report may have been paid,
terminated, vacated or released prior to the date this report was printed.

Activity summary

Borrower (Dir/Guar): NO
Administrative debt: NO
Contractor: NO
Grantee: , . NO
Party excluded from federal program(s): NO

Possible candidate for socio-economic program consideration
Labor surplus area: YES (2007)

Small Business: YES (2007)



8(A) firm: - ' N/A
The details provided in the Government Activity section are as reported to
Dun

& Bradstreet by ‘the federal government and other sources.

Copyright 2007 Dun & Bradstreet - Provided under contract

for the exclusive use of subscriber 264750059L
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